Planning Commission

Minutes July 31, 2012

NEW BUSINESS

2012-0126

2012-0142

Request for review and Recommendation of the Historic District Study
Committee's Report for 1631 W. Avon, located on the south side of Avon, west
of Livernois, zoned RE, Residential Estate, Parcel No. 15-21-126-036, as it
relates to the City's Master Land Use Plan.

(Reference: Memo prepared by James Breuckman, dated July 27, 2012
and Historic Districts Study Committee Report had been placed on fife

and by reference became part of the record thereof.)

Chairperson Boswell read the agenda item and asked for a motion. He
felt that it was clear, and that there really was no need for discussion. Mr.
Hetrick agreed and moved the following motion:

MOTION by Hetrick, seconded by Schroeder, Resolved, that the City of
Rochester Hills Planning Commission has reviewed the Historic Districts
Study Committee Report regarding the delisting of the Designated
Historic District focated at 1651 W. Avon, and has determined that the
delisting will not have any impact on the property with respect fo the
City’s Master Land Use Plan or any other development-related issues.

A motion was made by Hetrick, seconded by Schroeder, that this matter be
Accepted. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye 9- Boswell, Brnabic, Dettloff, Hetrick, Hooper, Kaltsounis, Reece, Schroeder
and Yukon

Master Land Use Plan Update Discussion

Mr. Breuckman pointed out that if was a little past the five-year
anniversary of the adoption of the 2007 Master Land Use Plan (MLUP).
By State law and good practice, it was time to review the Plan and make
sure it was still viable and to consider any amendments they might wish fo
add. The Commission had talked about potential amendments to the
Plan over the past six months or so. Staff now wished to formally move
the process forward, and he had put together a list of six items that could
be part of the amendment package for 2012. They would not be looking
at the demographics; he did not believe they had significantly changed,
and he felt that part was stilf valid. They were proposing o adopt two
studies info the Plan and fo give them a formal “force of law.” They were
the Rochesfter Road Access Management Plan and the M-59 Corridor
Plan, and both would serve as basis for decisions and pofential
Ordinance amendments. The Cily also adopted the Complete Streets
Palicy about a year or two ago in accordance with a State law. He
suggested that fo provide direction for the next Master Thoroughtare Plan
update, there should be a statement included that the Complete Streels
principals should be incorporated in accordance with State law. He

Page 2



Planning Commission

Minutes July 31, 2012

reminded that the Master Thoroughfare Plan was the companion
document to the Master Land Use Plan.

Mr. Breuckman had prepared a power point presentation. He pointed out
one focation in the City that was on the market that had been garnering a
fot of requests in the Planning Department. It was the former Sikh
Gurdwara Temple off of Old Orion Ct. It was planned and zoned
residential, but none of the interest was for residential uses. There was a
large parking lof and a church building on the site, and affer looking at it
several times, it did not really appear to him to be very amenable to
residential uses. Staff was proposing an alternate land use designation
that would be more consistent with the developed character of the site. it
did have frontage on Orion and Old Orion Ct., which was not a major
thoroughfare, but it was not a focal street either. He indicated the plfatted
lots on the site, which were actually five Iots that bisected the property.
There was a wet portion, buf there was a buildable area to the northwest.
Staff was suggesting that the Commissioners considered the four lots that
fronfed Old Orion Ct. for an office or FB-1 zoning, which would permit
office, not retail, or potentially a restaurant. They could retain the western
portion of the site as residential because it fronted on a residential street
(Ann Maria Dr.). He said that he would like to gef input from the
Commissioners.

Mr. Dettloff asked how large the parcel was. Mr. Breuckman said he was
not sure, although the platted lots were 7100 x 200, so he determined that it
was about two acres. Mr. Dettloff asked if there was a for-sale sign on the
property, which Mr. Breuckman confirmed.

Mr. Anzek added that there was a rather large right-of-way because of the
realignment of Orion Rd. When Papa Joe’s was first proposed, they found
that the right-of-way was owned by the Road Commission, and it was the
old inter-urban trolley line that ran from Detroit to Lake Orion. It was
virtually impossible for even Papa Joe's fo pursue the vacation of that.

The Road Commission did not want any part of it. He thought it would
make the site more affractive for medical office, and mentioned thaf there
was a medical office right across the street. He was nof sure if the
right-of-way could be vacated and attached fo the property.

Mr. Breuckman asked if there were any general comments or thoughts
about looking at the site for something other than residential.

Mr. Kaltsounis thought it would probably be appropriate for a doctor's
office or something similar - something that blended in and was not too

Page 3



Planning Commission

Minutes July 31, 2012

offensive. He agreed it was a quiet, back road. Mr. Breuckman
suggested that there was really not enough traffic to support any type of
retail.

Mr. Reece said that his first reaction was to keep it residential. If he was a
resident on the cul-de-sac, he would not be overly enthusiastic to have
retail or mixed use. He said that he would have to take a closer look at it,
but restated that his initial reaction was to keep it residential.

Mr. Anzek related that it was not something that would have to be decided
right away. He said that there had been numerous inquiries for office
uses. Mr. Breuckman also noted that a couple of non-profits were looking
at it for offices and storage of donated materials. Mr. Reece clarified that
the building there now was a church. Mr. Breuckman said it was a
temple, so it did not look like a typical church. Mr. Anzek advised that
there had been a lot of piecemeal renovations fo it, and it did not even
have the character of a house, which if once was, and it was rather plain.
He suggested that a Conditional Rezoning might be possible to get more
controls and to keep it as minimafly disruptive as possible. There could
be a reasonably fow intensity use like a dentist’s office. A Conditional
Rezoning would stop a 24-hour 7-Eleven or something similar.

Mr. Breuckman pointed out that someone would come in and go out
straight onto Orion Ct. That part of the site was isolated from the
remaining portions. Mr. Anzek said that immediately south of the church
site, there was a house that was somewhat forced onto the site, and it had
never been occupied. It was built in what seemed to be a wetland. There
was so much water during construction that they were surprised the house
could even be built. The owner walked away from it. Mr. Breuckman said
that the site was shown as water on the 2007 Future Land Use Map. It was
buift about three or four years ago, and Mr. Anzek was not sure how it got
a permit. He was not sure if it was something that would come down in the
future and create different zonings. That vacant property would probably
become blighted over time, and they would like to get something positive
as an adaptive reuse. Mr. Breuckman said that Sfaff would bring some
options back - most likely office.

Mr. Kaltsounis asked if the matter was a particufar Master Plan subject.
Mr. Breuckman said that they would have to amend the Future Land Use
Map, and that would be the sum total of the amendment. Mr. Kaltsounis
wondered about looking at just cne property in the entire City and
questioned if that was a story they wanted to telf. Mr. Breuckman
explained that when people came to the counter inquiring about land

Page 4



Planning Commission

Minutes ' July 31, 2012

uses, they looked at the Future Land Use map, and most of the time it
was spot on. In this case, it was one of the few times there was a
mismatch because conditions had changed there. When Papa Joe's was
built and the road was realigned and the church moved out, there was a
significant change in the area. Mr. Kaltsounis said that he was concerned
about setting a precedent for one property. He recalled working with the
properties on Dequindre (Rezoning request), and said that it was better
suited for just reviewing one property. Mr. Breuckman said that he was
comfortable about looking at the property on Orion Ct. and did not see an
issue.

Mr. Breuckman referred to the next item, the Tienken Smalf Area Plan,
and said that as he and Mr. Anzek discussed it, particularly given the
timing of the Tienken Rd. project in 2013, they saw an area that was
developed before most of the City. If was a suburb of Rochester before
anything else was there. The area was fairly piecemeal and older. There
was a lot of open and undeveloped space, and there was a lot of
development potential. Staff was suggesting that this area be the first
Small Area Plan to be tackled, because there was the highest chance of a
refurn on a planning investment. He thought that they could do the first
four items he had listed in the memo within the next few months. The
Small Area Plan was probably one they would chip away at, because it
would take a littte more work. He indicated that they would like to get any
feedback about whether there were other areas of town that made more
sense, otherwise, they would start to pull information together about how to
approach the Tienken Small Area Plan.

Mr. Kaltsounis felt that the Tienken Area Plan was more of a MLUP
project. It was totally different than an office building on Orion Ct., and it
was a large scale project. He felt that it was more suited for the MLUP
update. He brought up Rochester Hills having a downtown and asked
about that plan. Mr. Anzek asked him to which plan he was referring and
if he meant for the Olde Towne area, which Mr. Kaltsounis confirmed.

Mr. Anzek said they had discussed capital improvements for Auburn Rd.
ten or twelve years ago. They used to have $50,000 in the budget for a
study and $450,000 in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP} for street
furniture and workings. When he first came to the City in 2000, Staff
started working with the business owners in that corridor, and there was no
unifying voice or common intent. It was very difficult to try to organize
anyone into an agreement for the illustrative concept done in the 1998
version of the MLUP. [t was frustrating working with the owners, and they
let it sit for awhile. Eventually, it was pulled out of the CIP because of

Page 5



Planning Commission

Minutes July 31, 2012

money, and he claimed that it would be more difficult to get money now. It
was complicated because the State owned Auburn, although they wanted
to give the City the road before they would help the City clean up the Olde
Towne area. Staff could take a look at things like access from the
neighborhoods to Auburn, deciding which streets might be closed off to
control access. When Mr. Delacourt was with the City in 2001, he tried to
get the owners together for a common vision, and he had run into the
same brick wall. Mr. Anzek stated that it was a tough area, and it would
take a massive reinvestment. There was not a lot of massing to bring
about significant reinvestment. He referred to Birmingham or downfown
Rochester, which gave the opportunity to move on foot from one building
to another. The buildings on Auburn were spread out, and there was no
theme to build on. They had talked to the Mayor about it, buf the Mayor
said there were limited resources, and he thought that what they had
could be put to better use in other areas of fown.

Mr. Kaltsounis said that he agreed - he just was asking if anything had
changed. Mr. Anzek said they would like to do something there, but they
could not throw the money into it unless it would work. Mr. Kaftsounis
pointed out the area Auburn Hills had put money into developing. Mr.
Anzek observed that it sat vacant for a long time.

Mr. Kaltsounis brought up the corridor along South Boulevard south of
M-59 between Rochester and Dequindre, noting there were new office
buildings and vacant properties. Mr. Anzek said that they had been
promoting office for that area. They have had some success, and it was
working because the City added water and sewer. The owners of the land
immediately to the wesf of the Beaumont Health and Wellness Center
also owned the vacant land north of the office building on Rochester Rd
and South Bivd. The owners had met with Staff several times, and there
were some wetland considerations on the site. He felt that the market
would take care of it, and that there would eventually be an office corridor
along there. He and Mr. Breuckman had recently discussed the area on
Rochester Rd. from South Bivd. fo M-59. There was the Bolyard
Lumberyard and a Big Boy restaurant, and the owner of the lumber yard
was inferested in selling. He felt that the value of the land was belfer
suited for something else. Across the streef were a series of small
buildings, alf which had individual driveways. There was a liquor store, a
BP gas station and a single-farmily home at Nawakwa and Rochester.
Several people had wished to convert the home into something like an
ice cream parior, bul the mass was not right. There were too many
problems with the house to make it cost effective. Mr. Anzek concluded
that Staff welcomed any thoughts to put on a list of targeted areas for the

Page 6



Planning Commission

Minutes July 31, 2012

Small Area Plans.

Mr. Reece thought that particular area on Tienken offered the greatest
opportunity. Mr. Anzek agreed, and said that with the amount of work to
be done on Tienken, people would be eager to get in there. The retail,
commercial and office markets were growing. Mr. Reece said that if they
were looking fo develop a walking area, and o extend what they had in
Rochester, people could walk to the intersection and fto afl the restaurants
and shops at the corner of Rochester and Tienken. He felt there was a lot
of feasibility for that area.

Mr. Breuckman stated that Mr. Reece was absolutely right. The whole
quarter-mile rule of thumb for walking fit in well. He said that there were a
lot of accesses, and they could develop a block structure that was
walkable. He had some ideas he would bring forward, and Mr. Reece
commented that it was pretty exciting. Mr. Breuckman thought there was
enough potential for change, and they could see some things coming
forward. Mr. Schroeder remarked that they needed more than Christmas
trees and fireworks there. Mr. Anzek had always wondered why the strip
center was put so far off the road. Mr. Hooper recalled that at one time,
there was a strip club there. Mr. Schroeder also remembered that the
detention pond was buried on the wrong side. It was a very poor structure,
and a car went through it and broke the water main, which froze.

Ms. Brnabic referred back to Olde Towne, and noted that there had been
quite a few discussions over the years. She went through old Minutes that
referred to a plan for the area that was never implemented. She
wondered what the City might see as an overall scheme or picture for the
area. She guestioned whether they were more inferested in getting the
owners’ interest and coordination for reinvestment or if they were looking
for other outside investment possibilities. She asked if anyone had
considered going across Dequindre into Utica to try to do a joint venture.
She wondered if there was a possibility of some City funding for the
project. She realized there was nof a new coordinated plan, but she was
curious about any opinions or possibilities.

Mr. Anzek said that the answers to her questions were all yes. They would
very much like to see private and personal investment, however, some of
the businesses were not in the position to bring money forward. They
would be very inferested in outside investment and have talked to some
people about it, but they shared that they did not quite have the vision yet.
The City was looking at the option fo hire design services just to answer
the question about the vision for the corridor. They were working through

Page 7



Planning Commission

Minutes July 31, 2012

the RFP process now. There was not money budgeted, but they were
looking for somecne to assist the Cily to fry fo communicate an idea.
They were not ignoring the area, and they would fove to go after grants,
whether it was for traffic enhancement or something else. The City got a
huge grant for the Avon and Livernois intersection, and it might be tough
to get another one, but that would not stop them from trying. There were
numerous opportunities for grants out there. He noted that the City had
Jjust retained the services of a Communications Strategist company.

They hoped fo use them significantly on retention of businesses to town
and to get grants for the City. He maintained that he had never forgotten
the area; he was just not sure how to begin. He did not want to put a lot of
time and resources into it if MDOT was going to be a stumbling block. He
said that former Mayor Somerville told him that three studies had been
done, with a lot of money spent, and they never got the people organized
or excited about going forward.

Mr. Schroder observed that if they took the right-of-way, it would take the
majority of the buildings. There would not be enough room. Mr. Anzek
noted that there was one big curb cut through that stretch, and to try to
organize it would be difficuit. Mr. Schroeder said that to reafly do the job
right, they would have to take a lot of the homes.

Ms. Brnabic believed that parking was a problem years ago, aithough
some of that was alleviated with the new MLUP. Mr. Anzek thought that
some of her questions could be addressed through the State’s proposed
incentives for brownfields, historic preservation and business
development. They might try to work with Mr. Dettloff to get some advice
and guidance as to how they might be able to go after money fo assist
with re-investment. If a project created adaptive reuses for historic places
or created a sense of place and added jobs, the City might get positioned
to get State money.

Mr. Dettloff suggested that before the City contracted for design services
that they might get in touch with some of the planning people from
Qakfand County. Even though the Auburn corridor would be a
manufactured downtown versus a traditional downtown, he felt that it might
be good to get the County’s input before going forward. He offered that he
would be happy to participate in any of those discussions.

Mr. Anzek advised that Mr. Breuckman did the Master Plan for Shelby
Township before he joined the City. He and Mr. Breuckman met with the
Planning Director there and had gotten to know him pretty well. They
worked with a firm that did a corridor plan for that strefch of Auburn Rd.

Page 8



Planning Commission

Minutes July 31, 2012

He saw a public presentation on it, and he did not think it was an overly
expensive recommendation, and it was a nice way of unifying the corridor.
They talked about doing a plan from Dequindre west a block or two and
about investing in something that might generate activity. He answered
Ms. Brnabic that they had mel with Shelby Township.

Ms. Brnabic indicated that in a prior experience, something was
mentioned about getting current business owners logether and that it was
hard fo get them to agree on much. She asked whether Mr. Anzek had
observed a lack of interest, a lack of financial resources or a lack of
vision. She asked how the businesses in the area really felt or if he had
even queried many business owners.

Mr. Anzek replied that he had met with four key owners several iimes. He
met with those that were on the major cofners from the concept of the
1998 MLUP. One owned a generator rebuild shop and one had an
insurance comparny, and no one had the means to financially invest. A
main oufstanding issue was that they did not have a common vision.

They could not look at the iffustrative plan and convert it to what might
happen on the street. Their concerns were getfing more parking, and they
already had excessive parking for the concept to work. After talking for six
months, he had lost some drive, He stated that there was just not that
magic of “spirit,” and perhaps that was what they had fo work on moving
forward. They maybe needed fo spend a little money to do a vision for
the area to start generating interest and fo show peaple how things could
work. Then they would figure ouf the implementation strategies.

Discussed

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Anzek explained that the light agenda for this Special Meeting was
because they had planned to have a Public Hearing for Christenbury
Estates PUD. The Planning Commission had talked about it at the last
meeting. The applicant had put together a pian for a seven-unit PUD on
Dequindre Rd. Staff worked closely with the applicants, because they
wanted fo get going on the development and had lost some time with the
Rezoning request that was denied. The applicant cafled him Friday
morning and said that he did not have that strong enough of a deal with
the seller, and the selfer came back with a higher price that now made the
project cost-prohibitive for seven units. The seller liked the seven-unit
concept and raised the price. The applicant asked for Mr. Anzek's advice,
and he told him that he did not feel he should go in front of the Planning

Page 9



